

# **Reportnet 3.0 Reporter HowTo**

Version 3.10 (01-08-2024)

#### Contents

C	ontents		. 1
1	Loggir	ng on and user profile	. 3
	1.1	How to log on to the production platform	. 3
	1.2	How to log on to the test platform	. 3
	1.3	How to change my profile picture	. 3
	1.4	How to change my global settings	3
	1.5	How to log off	. 4
2	Datafl	lows	. 5
	2.1	Dataflows overview	. 5
	2.2	How to sort and filter my dataflow list	. 5
	2.3	How to pin a dataflow	. 6
3	Datafl	low	. 7
	3.1	Dataflow overview	. 7
	3.1.1	How to add reporters to my dataflow	. 8
	3.1.2	How to submit the data	. 9
	3.1.3	How to show/hide released data	11
	3.1.4	How to consult Reported data publicly available	12
	3.1.5	How to receive technical acceptance review	13
	3.1.6	How to submit an updated version of the data	14
	3.1.7	How to generate API-key	15
	3.1.8	How to consult Historic Releases	16
	3.1.9	How to Communicate with Custodian	16
	3.1.10	) How to check dataflow users list	17
	3.2	Dataflow help	19
	3.3	Dataset schema	20
	3.3.1	How to add records through the web interface	23
	3.3.2	How to edit records through the web interface	23
	3.3.3	How to import records to a table from a CSV file	23
	3.3.4	How to import records to all tables from a custom template file	23
	3.3.5	How to load data from a previous reporting	24
	3.3.6	How to filter table data	25
	3.3.7	How to load data for a Point field	25



3.3.8	How to load data for other Spatial fields	. 26
3.3.9	How to see the list of QC checks	. 26
3.3.10	How to validate the data manually	. 26
3.3.11	How to delete a row	. 28
3.3.12	How to save a copy of the dataset	. 28
3.3.13	How to restore a copy of the dataset	. 28
3.3.14	How to fill a Webform	. 29



# 1 Logging on and user profile

# **1.1** How to log on to the production platform

- 1. Go to <u>https://reportnet.europa.eu/</u>
- 2. A notification for allowing notifications from Reportnet is displayed. It is recommended to allow them.

$\leftrightarrow \rightarrow G$	<b>n</b> e	eportnet.europ	oa.eu			
An official we	repo	reportnet.europa.eu wants to				
Euro	p 🖡	Show notification	ons			
Reportnet				Allow	Block	

#### Figure 1 Allow showing notifications

- 3. Following steps are detailed in a separate HowTo.
- 4. A dialogue with cookies information appears like in other EEA pages.

# **1.2** How to log on to the test platform

- 1. Go to <a href="https://rn3test.eionet.europa.eu/">https://rn3test.eionet.europa.eu/</a>
- 2. Log on by using your email.

## 1.3 How to change my profile picture

- 1. On any screen, click on the 'User profile details' button in the left menu.
- 2. Click on the picture space to either select a default Avatar or upload your own image.

## 1.4 How to change my global settings

- 1. On any screen, click on the 'User profile details' button in the left menu.
- 2. Available global settings can be managed from this page.
  - Pagination rows Configure the number of rows displayed in the pagination.
  - Date Format Select the desired date format to visualize.
  - Theme Choose the theme to display in the system.
  - Type of view Choose default layout to search obligations and dataflows.
  - **Logout confirmation** Configure the way to logout with or without a confirmation popup.
  - Basemap layer Configure the default basemap layer for your map.



# 1.5 How to log off

- 1. On any page, click on the power button in the top right or bottom left of the screen.
- 2. By default, you will be asked to confirm you wish to log off, however this can be turned off in your global settings or in the same pop-up window by clicking "Do not ask again".



# 2 Dataflows

# 2.1 Dataflows overview

	ŧ	Repo	ortnet 3	3 > 🎢 Dataflows						٢	Test Provider	ወ
<ul> <li>▲</li> <li>●</li> <li>●</li> <li>●</li> </ul>	F	F Reporting dataflows Business dataflows Citizen science dataflow										
Ą	Ŀ	t1	Name		<b>†↓</b> Description	1	Legal instrument		ţ↓	Obligation		
ت ا		ţţ	Id oblig	gation	<b>†↓</b> Status	~ 1	Role	~	ţ↓	Pinned		~
Ľ		↓2 C	Date ra	inge							O Re	set
A				Role: LEAD REPORTER Dataflow Reportne Dataflow description test	t Testing					Delivery date: <b>20</b>	21-10-28	4
				Legal instrument: UNCED Agenda Obligation: Agenda 21 National	a 21 Report					Delivery statu: Dataflow statu	s: DRAFT Is: OPEN	

**Figure 2 Dataflow list** 

- [A] The main part of the page comprises the list of dataflows which you have access to 'Reporting dataflows' and 'Business dataflows'.
- [B] The list of the 'Reporting dataflows', 'Business dataflows' and 'Citizen science dataflows'
- [C] A dataflow is colour coded according to the current status grey in design and purple when reporting is open. On the dataflow card, you can see various metadata – Your role; Delivery date; Dataflow name; Dataflow description; Associated obligation and instrument; Reporting datasets status; Status.
- [D] Filters and sort on the various metadata of the dataflows list allow you to find things easily in the dataflows list.
- [E] This button will expand the menu, to show the icon labels.
- [F] The static menu is available on every page and has four buttons. From top to button, the buttons are:
  - My dataflows will return you to this page.
  - User profile details allows you to manage some global settings and see your user profile.
  - Help Triggers a help walkthrough of the page you are currently on.
  - Notifications Provides the history of all notifications (which appear in the top right of the screen) as a list. Note: the indicator only tells that the process has started or ended and there is no progress bar to know the percentage of the process (import, validate, ...). Also, although the indicator says that a process has been sent, it doesn't mean that it has started processing. Depending on the number of other processes that are in ReporteNet3 server maybe it will be held waiting in queue until other previous processes have finished.

# 2.2 How to sort and filter my dataflow list

- 1. The dataflow list is by default ordered first by status (design dataflows at the top) and secondly by delivery date (descending).
- 2. Each of the metadata fields on the dataflows (name, description, legal instrument, obligation, status, role, date range of, etc) can be filtered or sorted

European Environment Agency



on using the filter bar at the top of the dataflows list. The filters are applied on entering.

- 3. Combinations of more than one filter can be used.
- 4. The button on the right 'Reset' will put the list back to its default state.

# 2.3 How to pin a dataflow

- 1. There is a **pin** icon in the top right of each dataflow card.
- 2. When clicking on pin, there is a notification message. The dataflow displays a pin icon in the right side and it goes to top of the list.
- 3. When I have others already pinned, it keeps the same order criteria than when unpinned.
- 4. When I unpin any, there is a notification message. The dataflow turns unpinned and come back to dataflow list following proper order criteria.

澿	Reportnet 3.0 >	A Dataflows	testprovider U
<b>☆</b> ⊖ ⑦	My Dataflows	Completed	
4	†↓ Name	$\uparrow\downarrow$ Description $\uparrow\downarrow$ Legal instrument $\uparrow\downarrow$ Obligation $\uparrow\downarrow$ Status $\checkmark$ $\uparrow\downarrow$ Role $\checkmark$ $\uparrow\downarrow$ Pinn	ied $\checkmark$ $\downarrow_Z^A$ Date range $\heartsuit$ Reset
ອ ອ	Role Data	: LEAD REPORTER taflow Reportnet Testing flow description test	Delivery date: 2021-01-31
	Lega Oblij	l instrument: UNCED Agenda 21 gation: Agenda 21 National Report	Delivery status: <b>DRAFT</b> Dataflow status: <b>OPEN</b>

Figure 3 Pin a dataflow



# **3** Dataflow

# 3.1 Dataflow overview



Figure 4 - Dataflow

- [A] **Properties**, the icon marked with 'i', displays the information regarding the dataflow, reporting obligation and legal instrument (extracted from ROD).
- [B] API-key, the cog button, displays a dialog showing the parameters which are needed to access the Reportnet 3 API (explained in section 3.1.7).
- [C] Manage reporters displays a dialog where a lead reporter can provide access to the dataflow for other reporters (explained in section 3.1.1).
- [D] The main part of the page are icons which take you to the components of the dataflow:
  - **Dataflow help** for accessing to the dataflow help page, in here you will find three tabs showing documents, links and technical overview of the reporting schema (explained in section 3.2).
  - **'Technical Feedback'** for communicating with Custodian and for receiving technical acceptance review (explained in section 3.1.5).
  - **Reporting data** is where the data in the excel spreadsheet is uploaded and validated. The user can also find Reference data, codelist and/or different dataset schemas where to report descriptive and spatial data.
  - Release to data collection for submitting your reported data once you have uploaded and validated it.



European Union	,						
Reportnet 3 > 1	🕯 Datafiows > 💭 D	atafiow 🔰 💣 Belgiu-	Managë reporters	-	_	-	×
Detaflows User profile details Help	C Sp Data	rint 41 flow - Belgium	Email		Role	~	O Reset
Notifications     System notifications			Reporter email		Role		Actions
Properties		8 <sub>-</sub>	igor.provider@reportnet.net	20 20	REPORTER WRITE REPORTER READ		· *
Release data visibility     API key     Manage reportans     Manage reportans	Detaflow help	Validations	Rows per page 10 V		N 4 <mark>1</mark> > N		
) Legovi. ¢			Note: Management of secondary reporter ac	cess to this dataflow i	s the lead reporter responsibility		
							-

# 3.1.1 How to add reporters to my dataflow

#### Figure 5 Manage reporters

- 1. Go to the dataflow page.
- 2. Click on the double arrow at bottom left to expand the left menu and click on the button 'Manage reporters'.
- 3. A pop-up will appear where you can add reporters.
- Add the reporter accounts. Under the account field, add the registered users email address and select an access level of 'read' or 'read-write'. Click on the dialogue away from the input fields.
  - i. If the system cannot find the email as a registered user, then a red box will appear around the email address and an icon indicating the user is not valid. Moreover, you have a button "Update the permissions" to check if the user is or not created and has permissions.
  - ii. If it is accepted, then you will be able to add another editor (the account field is automatically generated after a successful entry) and so on.
- 5. Note: 'read' can only see the dataflow schema through the 'Dataflow help' -> 'Dataset schemas' page.
- 6. Note: This added reporter see different things in the dataflow overview than Lead Reporter (e.g, Technical Feedback button).
- 7. Once you have added all your reporters click 'Close'.



# 3.1.2 How to submit the data

	Reportnet 3 > 🎓 Dataflows > 🗇 Dataflow > 🥃 Spain								
<b>*</b> 9 ?	Dataflows User profile details Help	Datafl	ow Reportnet	Spain t Testing					
.↓ 	Notifications System notifications Properties	i	9	3	۵				
¢ ₽≎ 20 20 () <	API-key Manage reporters Dataflow users list Logout	Dataflow <sup>help</sup> Techn feedb	DS-Test hical back	DS2	Release to data collection				

#### Figure 6 Submit data

- 1. Go to the Dataflow overview.
- 2. [A] Click on 'Release to data collection'.

Confirm release		8
Are you sure you want to release all the datasets to the data collection?		
Restrict from public view	✓ Yes	× No

#### Figure 7 Restrict from public view

- A confirmation dialogue appears with a checkbox 'Restrict from public view' (default: false). This checkbox is only visible if custodian has previously set the datasets as 'Available at public view' and 'Show public information'. If checked, previous downloadable release will be deleted (if existed one).
- 4. The QC is run on each dataset and the 'Show validations' list refreshed in the background.
- 5. If there are blockers in any dataset, the release is stopped and there is a message to user to inform about that.
- 6. If the QCs run fine, a notification will appear saying the data is being validated and sent to the data collection. An automatic copy will be created.
- 7. Note: the user cannot release a copy they have made themselves. But the user can make copies for themselves as convenient restore points.
- [B] You will also see a new icon from which you can download a simple 'confirmation receipt'. If you change the data and resubmit a new copy to the data collection, then a new confirmation receipt is available for download.



European Environment Agency Kongens Nytorv 6 Dk 1050 Copenhagen K	Receipt date: 2020-11-05 Representative: Austria
To Whom It May Concern	
This is a confirmation of receipt for nationa the reporting obligation	I data submission under
DF name for testing RC4	
Obligation: WISE SoE - Emissions (WISE https://rod.eionet.europa.eu/ob	-1) bligations/632
Datasets	Release date
D0	2020-10-07 10:56:45 UTC

#### **Figure 8 Confirmation Receipt**

9. There is a possibility where reporter cannot submit data, and this is when requester has closed release process.



Figure 9 Dataflow closed for reporting



## 3.1.3 How to show/hide released data

Reportnet 3 > 🎓 Dataflows > 💭 Dataflow > 🥃 Spain										
* • •	Dataflows User profile details Help	Dataf	aflow Reportnet Testing							
 ÷ •	System notifications Properties	i	Q				× •			
24 \$ 20 20	Release data visibility API-key Manage reporters Dataflow users list	Dataflow help	Technical feedback	DS-Test	DS2	Confirmation receipt	Release to data collection			
ር) «	Logout									

#### Figure 10 Release data visibility button

Once you have released the data, you can show or hide the released data.

- 1. Go to the Dataflow overview.
- [A] Click on 'Release data visibility'. If you didn't check the option of as 'Restrict from public view' when you made the release data collection, you will see the modal with the option to change the visibility.

Show/hide released data	8
Restrict from public view	
	✓ Save ★ Cancel
n dutu	

#### Figure 11 Restrict from public view

But if you marked the release data collection with the check 'Restrict from public view', the option is disabled. If you want to release the new data, you must release the data collection again.



#### Figure 12 Unrestrict from public view



## 3.1.4 How to consult Reported data publicly available

- 1. Lead reporter has previously released to data collection without selecting "Restrict from public" view option (see section 3.1.2)
- 2. Public user can choose in Reportnet3 Home page View by Obligation or View by country to see dataflow status and download reported data.

European Union			
Reportnet Reportnet 3 is the new e-Reporting platform for reporting environmental and dimate data to the European Environment Agency (EEA). The platform embraces the strategic goals of the European Commission's Green Deal and Digital Strategy and will host reporting tasks on behalf of EEA and the Commission.	The transition of reporting obligations from Reportnet 2 to Reportnet 3 will take a number of years. Therefore, Reportnet 2 will remain operational until all data flows are migrated and will then become an archive. Reportnet 2 can be accessed here: http://cdr.elonet.europa.eu/		Login Please contact us at helpdeskillerportnet.europa.eu Support documents:
Dataflow status View by obligation dataflow status and download reported data	View by country dataflow status and download reported data		

Figure 13 View public data

3. By selecting any of the available dataflows or countries, a summary table is displayed with release information, weblinks, documents, reference datasets, reporting datasets, a button to download the schemas information and ZIP files with reported data downloadable.

Covint 4	0 Dovious (Dort 2)						
Sprint 40 - Review (Part 2)							
▲ Download schemais info							
Reporting datasets							
Count	ry <b>≑</b>	Delivery date 🗢	Delivery statu	\$ \$	Files		
ustria 🗹	-		Pending				
		•					
Documents							
ocuments		Category 🖨	Language 🗢	Size 🗢	File 🗢		
ocuments Title 🖨	Description 🜩			00.00.00	ED-		
able1.csv	Description 🗢	CSV	Bulgarian	86.55 KB	6		
ocuments Title 🗢 Table1.csv	Description 🖨	CSV	Bulgarian	86.55 KB	8		
Title \$	Description \$	CSV	Bulgarian	86.55 KB	8		
Title \$ Title \$ Total Second S	Description \$	C5V	Bulgarian	84 62.66			

**Figure 14 Dataflow review** 



portnet Reportnet 3 > Countries > Country								
Belgium Dataflows								
Name 🜩	Obligation 🖨	Legal instrument 🌩	Deadline \$	Status ¢	Delivery date 🖨	Delivery status 🖨	Reference datasets	Files
Sprint 41 Popup bug test 6 🛛 🛃	(D) Information on the assessment methods (Articles 8 and 9) - for fixed and indicative measurements	Air Quality Directive IPR	2021-10-29	Open	-	Pending		
delivery 2 2037 🕑	MSFD monitoring programmes (Art. 11)	Marine Strategy Framework Directive	1970-01-23	Open		Pending		
test 1308 2021 🕑	(C) Information on the assessment regime (Article 7)	Air Quality Directive IPR 🕑	2021-10-01	Open	-	Pending		
TAS yes - Add technical acceptance status in the public dataflow/country information table 01 09 21 🛛 🖉	(D1b) Information on the assessment methods (Articles 8 and 9) - for models and objective estimation	Air Quality Directive IPR	2021-09-30	Open	2021-09-01 14:06	Technically accepted	6	
TAS no - Add technical acceptance status in the public dataflow/country information table 01 09 21 🛛 🖄	(C) Preliminary information on the assessment regime (Article 7)	Air Quality Directive IPR	2022-01-01	Open		Pending	6 6	
S38 Download test 🕐	(C) Information on the assessment regime (Article 7)	Air Quality Directive IPR 🛛 🖉	2021-09-30	Open	-	Pending		
Dataflow without Manual Acceptance 🕑	(D) Information on the assessment methods (Articles 8 and 9) - for fixed and indicative measurements	Air Quality Directive IPR	2021-09-30	Open	•	Pending		_
TAS yes - one schema - Add technical acceptance status in the public dataflow/country information table 01 09 21 🛛 🖄	(E1b) Information on primary validated assessment data - modelled (Article 10) 🕑	Air Quality Directive IPR	2022-01-01	Open		Pending		
Dataflow without Manual Acceptance 2 schemas 🛛 🖉	(D) Information on the assessment methods (Articles 8 and 9) - for fixed and indicative measurements	Air Quality Directive IPR	2021-10-01	Open	-	Pending		
Dataflow WITH Manual Acceptance 2 schemas	(D) Information on the assessment methods (Articles 8 and 9) - for fixed and indicative measurements	Air Quality Directive IPR	2021-10-01	Open		Pending		
Rows per page 10 🗸	N 4 1 2	3 <b>▶</b> N					Total: 2	4 record

Figure 15 Public information

In the above figure, there is a box where is shown the **'Reference datasets'**. In some of the dataflows it might appear "Reference tables" and/or "Codelist tables" that have been defined by the data custodian.

The reference data is data that is there to check the validation of the data in QCs (Quality Checks). These tables are in RN3 before the member states report data. If the reference data is needed, the reporter will check that the data reported is correct in accordance with the reference data. So, the reporter will have to report data that use identifiers from previous reporting. These tables are read only so the reporter won't be able to change them. Usually, it will be included in the dataflow the last available data. The requesters will add in the description of the reference tables where the data came from and when the data was imported to keep all this information as metadata.

## 3.1.5 How to receive technical acceptance review

When a dataflow has been configured as "manual acceptance", its status appears as 'Pending' (displayed in Reporting datasets status and status next to dataset name):

ortnet 3.0 > 🐐 Dataflows > 💭 Dataflow > 🛢 Dataset							
Schema for RN3 RC4.2 Sprint 24 Pending RN3 RC4.2 - France							
🛓 Export dataset data 🛛 📋 Delete dataset data		Show validations not state of the state	QC Rules 🖴 Dashboards 🖨 Manage copies 📿 Refresh				
Table 1 🔺							
📩 Import table data 🔹 Export table data 🖷 Dele	ete table data 🛛 🔗 Show/Hide columns 🛛 🏹 Validation fi	lter					
Actions	Validations	Text field 🕚 🖨	Number <sup>0</sup> 🖨				
		blabla	10				
			1				
	۸	text	<b>A</b>				
			9				
		blablabla	-100				
	H 4 1	▶ N 5 V	Total: 5 records				

Figure 16 Manual Acceptance status

- 1. When the reporter releases data, the status is marked as 'Final feedback'.
- 2. The custodian makes a review of the data released in the data collection and sends feedback.



- 3. It is possible to set the status to 'technically accepted' or 'correction requested'.
- 4. If 'correction requested', the data stays in the data collection, feedback is
- received and status is updated.

•			
nport table data 🔺 Export table data 🚦	Delete table data 🛛 $\oslash$ Show/Hide columns 🏹 Validation f	filter	
Actions	Validations	Text field 😶 🖨	Number <sup>1</sup> ¢
		blabla	10
			1
	▲	text	<b>A</b>
<ul> <li>Image: A set of the set of the</li></ul>			9
		blablabla	-100
	H 4 1	▶ H 5 ¥	Total: S recor
ld record			@ Paste recor



Figure 18 Feedback received

5. If it's '*technical accepted*' then the version in the data collection is marked as such and status is updated.

#### 3.1.6 How to submit an updated version of the data

- 1. It is possible to resubmit data to the data collection whilst the reporting is still open.
- 2. Go to the Dataflow overview.
- 3. Click on 'Release to data collection'.
- 4. The QC is run on each dataset and the 'Show validations' list refreshed in the background.
- 5. If there are blockers in any dataset, the release is stopped and there is a message to user to inform about that.
- 6. If the QCs run fine, a notification will appear saying the data is being validated and sent to the data collection. A new automatic copy will be created.
- 7. You will also see the icon **'confirmation receipt'** is now updated from which you can download a new receipt reflecting the new delivery.



# 3.1.7 How to generate API-key

	Reportnet 3.0 >	Dataflows <b>&gt;</b>	Dataflow				
*		2 DC1 2	Manage API-key				×
<b>₽</b> ⑦ ℓ	Datafi	ow		There is	s no generated API ke <u>i</u>	/	
6		Q					
۵					👂 Gener	rate new API-key	🗙 Close
<b>گ</b> ≎ (ا)	Dataflow help	Technical feedback	Schema for RN3 RC4.2 Sprint 24	Confirmation Receipt	Release to data collection		
»							

#### Figure 19 Manage API-key

- 1. Go to the dataflow page.
- 2. There will not be API generated if it is the first time for the user.
- 3. Click on 'Generate new API-key'.

Ŵ	Reportnet 3.0 >	😭 Dataflows >	🕞 Dataflow						
<b>*</b> 0 7	<b>RN</b> Datafl	<b>3 RC4.2</b>	Manage API-ke	y API-key:	52782b26-	27d1-4601-a27c-ed7b5ac7	7e9b 🚺 🖡	, ,	ĸ
_ •		ୟ			Dataflow: 1	275 Data provider: 19			
✿ ♣∞	Dataflow	Technical feedback	Schema for RN3 RC4.2	Confir	mation ceipt	Cenerate Release to data	new API-key	× Close	
С U	noip		Sprint 24			collection			

#### Figure 20 Generate API-key

- 4. Once the API-key is generated, it can be copied on clipboard using [A].
- 5. Different API-keys will be generated every time user clicks on 'Generate new API-key'.
- 6. API-key could be used as explained in 3.3.14.



#### 3.1.8 How to consult Historic Releases



#### Figure 21 Historic Releases reporting DS

- 1. Once you have released one or more data to data collection, click on 'Historic Releases' button inside Reporting dataset context menu.
- 2. A new dialogue will appear with the release history for this dataset.

#### 3.1.9 How to Communicate with Custodian



#### Figure 22 Feedback

- There is a channel to communicate with Custodian at Dataflow level ('Technical Feedback' button).
- 2. User can see the messages (not read), get previous messages and the option to add new messages.



3. Note: Communication for technical acceptance review (see section 3.1.3) is also included in this Feedback section.

Reportnet 3.0 > 🍘 Dataflows > 💭 Dataflow > 🕰 Technical feedback	testprovider testprovider	
RN3.0 RC4.2 (Sprint 24)		
	Dear Custodian. I would like to clarify expected data for Table 1. 2028-11-17 19:57	I
Dear Lead Reporter. Please, fill data as explained in the instructions provided within specific Regularion. 2020;11:17:11:01		l
		l
		l
		l
Write your message	Send •	

Figure 23 Feedback messages

- Reportnet 3 > 🖀 Dataflows > 🔲 Dataflow ~ Sprint Review 31 - User list visibility θ Dataflow - Spain ? ≏ æ H 0 ٠ 20 Dataflow Schema 10 Release to data **;**;;; Dataflow users list collection
- 3.1.10 How to check dataflow users list

Figure 24 Dataflow users list



Dataflow users list					
Role	~	Email			
	Role 🜲		User 🖨		
DATA CUSTODIAN			miguel.custodian@reportnet.net		
LEAD REPORTER			miguel.provider@reportnet.net		
NATIONAL COORDINAT	OR		national.spain@reportnet.net		
REPORTER READ			kiko.provider@reportnet.net		
REPORTER WRITE			igor.provider@reportnet.net		
REPORTER WRITE			pablo.provider@reportnet.net		
	И 4	1 ▶ ₩	10 🗸 Tot		

#### Figure 25 Dataflow users list Roles

- 1. From a dataflow inside a country selection (if applies, if there are not more than one country, directly in dataflow main page), the user can see all users assigned to this dataflow country by selection 'Dataflow users list' in the left bar.
- 2. All roles, when applies, are displayed: Data Custodian, Lead Reporter, National Coordinator, Reported Read, Reporter Write, ...

It is important to remember that only the users that appear on the list will be able to view the country information, so other lead reporters from other countries will only be able to see their corresponding country and not the information from other member states.

A user is only allowed to add users that have the same or lower privileges while for removing users, only the ones that have lower permissions.



# 3.2 Dataflow help

澿	Reportnet	🖀 Dataflows 🕨 🔳 Dat	aflow <b>〉 i Dataflow hel</b>	р		(	jonathan.rr	naidens.provider 😃
<ul> <li><b>☆</b></li> </ul>	Dat setting Supporting d	aflow help ; up help B occuments Web links Datas	C					
	Title	Description	Category	Language	Is public	Upload date	Size	File
				No documents up	ploaded			
ወ								
<b>&gt;&gt;</b>								

Figure 26 Dataflow help

- [A] 'Supporting documents' Documents to support the data delivery for example reporting guidance or templates.
- [B] 'Web links' links to external resources relevant to the reporting.
- [C] 'Dataset schemas' Information on the dataset schema Extension Operations, Uniques, Validations, table and field names and descriptions.



# 3.3 Dataset schema

A dataflow can have one or several datasets. In some cases, they can be divided into: spatial data and descriptive data.

澿	Reportnet 3.0 > 🏘 Dataflows > 🛄 Dataflow > 🗮 Dataset	٢	patricia provider
<ul> <li><b>↔</b></li> <li><b>↔</b></li> </ul>	New DS for checking rules New DF to check rules - Italy		
	🔺 Export dataset data 🔮 Delete dataset data 🔹 Validate 🔔 Show validations 🛱 QC Rules 🖃 Dashboards 🍙 I	Manage copies	C Refresh
۵ »	t1 table1 t2 table2 t3 table3		
	B 🛓 Import table data 🏦 Delete table data 💿 Show/Hide columns 👕 Validation filter		
	Actions Validations point 1 to \$ point 2 to \$ Number \$ C	🔒 text 🕄	¢
	N    1    → N 10	Total:	0 records
	Add record	🥔 Past	e records

**Figure 27 - Reporting dataset** 

- [A] The top menu bar provides various functions which operate on the whole dataset:
  - Import dataset data Imports the whole dataset into the platform:
    - ZIP (.csv for each table): a ZIP file with CSV files inside, having one CSV per each table.
    - Custom file imports: the dataflows might have a custom process to import data using a template file that will be the file type or types that the requester or data custodian decides to have. This template will be held in 'Supporting documents' of section 3.2 Dataflow support documents.



Figure 28 Import dataset data types

- Export dataset data Exports the whole dataset into a downloadable file:
  - (XLSX(.xlsx): normal export that gives the same info that appear in the tables that follow the template to import.
  - XLSX (.xlsx with validations): is an Excel file that after each column has a column with the same name but for validation. Example, if there is a column named "Name" there will be next to it another column named "Name validation". If this field is empty, it is because the field is correct after passing the QCs.
  - ZIP (XLSX + attachments): exports the dataset as a ZIP file that would contain the Excel file inside.
  - ZIP (CSV for each table): a ZIP file with CSV files inside, having one CSV per each table.







- Delete dataset data Deletes all the data in the dataset.
- Validate Runs validations for the whole dataset. There is no progress bar to know the percentage that has been validated. All said in section 2.1 Dataflow overview [F] Notifications part, applies here. The amount of data that has to be validated will make that the process could take minutes to finish. The user doesn't need to wait in front of the screen, they can leave and come back later to see if the validation has finished.
- Show validations Shows a table of all the validation issues found across the whole dataset after a validation has been run.
- QC rules shows a list of all the validations which have been created for the dataset.
- Dashboards Provides a visualisation of the validation feedback.
- Manage copies Functionality to save copies of the data (snapshots or restore points).
- Refresh After import, validation and restore copy, you need to refresh the tables.
- [B] This menu bar provides functionality applicable to the selected (visible) table:
  - Import table data Import data into the table from an external file.
  - **Export table data** Export data from the table into an external file. There are different ways of exporting:
    - CSV
    - CSV with filters: is a CSV with the filters that the user has selected in RN3 to select only the data that they would like to view
    - Excel file: the file will have only one tab with the name of the table and following the template structure.



Figure 30 Export table data types

- **Delete table data** Deletes all the data in the selected table.
- Show/hide columns.
- Validation filter Show/hide records based on validation results.



- [C] Column heading however the mouse over the 'i' icon to see a pop-up with the field type and description.
- [D] Below the table are buttons to add single records or paste single or multiple records.
- [E] Navigate back to the dataflow overview using the breadcrumb. The delivery of the data is triggered from the dataflow page.

For each of the ways of importing data into the platform it is important to understand properly the concept of incremental or partial reporting when the user selects 'Replace data' option. ReportNet3 maintains the information of users that have already reported to facilitate the work if a partial or incremental report is required. If the user uploads only a subset of data and click on 'Replace data' then, the data that was before will be erased and will only leave the last subset of data uploaded. As an example, if a user has in a table 1000 rows and 100 of those have errors. If the user downloads the subset and correct afterwards and upload the data selecting 'Replace data', the user will end up with only those 200 rows.

Reporter	Imported Data	Replace data (Yes/No)	Content in RN3
R1	А	Yes/No	А
R2	В	No	АВ
R3	С	No	АВС
R4	А	No	АВСА
R4	АВС	Yes	АВС
R5	D	Yes	D

In this table is shown how partial or incremental reporting is saved in RN3

Normally, the relationships between the tables are 1 to 1, but they can be 1 to many. Let's introduce the "Codelist" concept. If there is a list of chemical substances and the reporter has to include in a table some of those substances and that table column is defined as 1 to N, means that one record of the table is related to different chemical substances. In RN3, the 1 to N relationships with "Codelist" are included and it's just one record and one table column. For example, if the user has a table column in a table that says chemical substance and the reporter can choose between different chemical substances from the "Codelist" and all of them are included in that table column and they are separated by semicolon. So, imagine that the "Codelist" are 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and so on, and then the content of that table column would be "1, 2, 3" meaning that the table column is related to three different chemical substances. That is one option for 1 to N relationships.

The other option is to have two different tables and the common relationship 1 to N between them. In both cases, there are QCs and if there is a 1 to N relationship, if you cannot duplicate the same record or if the 1 to N relationship must be reported, ... For all that there is a QC control.



## 3.3.1 How to add records through the web interface

- 1. Add rows using the 'Add record' button on the bottom left of the table.
- 2. In the dialog, tab between fields to enter data.
- 3. Enable the 'Add another record' and the dialog will remain after 'Save' is clicked for the adding of the next record.

## 3.3.2 How to edit records through the web interface

- 1. Either click directly on the field you wish to edit or click on the **'edit'** icon to the left of the record to see the pop-up.
- Note: Changes should be reflected in the source data on your own system. You
  can export your dataset to your source system after these changes are finalised.
  Alternatively, correct the data in your source system, delete the table dataset
  data and then reimport.
- 3. Note: Descriptive data can contain documents and references to documents that can't be imported because it must be done manually

## 3.3.3 How to import records to a table from a CSV file

- 1. Export the empty dataset schema using the 'export table data' button and selecting 'CSV'.
- 2. Use this template to create a CSV file in the right format to import your data. Note: the field separator ',' used for CSV files.
- 3. Use the 'import table data' to bring the data back into the table via the CSV file.
- Note: Rows will be appended to the current table except when 'Replace data' check is selected.
- 5. The dataset will be automatically validated after import.
- 6. Note: the name of the CSV will have to be the same as the name of the table that is going to be imported data to.

#### 3.3.4 How to import records to all tables from a custom template file

- The requester will have distributed the custom template which can be used to deliver the data. This could be in, for example, XLSX, XML or SQLite file types. Populate the template according to the provided instructions. This template will be held in 'Supporting documents' of section 3.2 Dataflow support documents. While in the previous case in section the import will only import data for one table, this case will do it for all the tables at the same time if the user saves data for all of them in the template.
- 2. Click on the 'Import dataset data' button and select the file.
- 3. The application which automatically know from the file type that a custom transformation is being used.
- Rows will be appended to the current table except when 'Replace data' check is selected.



# 3.3.5 How to load data from a previous reporting

業	Re Re	eportnet 3.0 🗲 😤 Dataflo	ws 🕽 🔲 Dataflow 🔰 🛢 D	ataset			
<b>*</b> • • •	A	Schema How to? - Cze	a <b>1</b> ch Republic				
ሆ »		Import dataset data     Import previous data     Prefill data	Export dataset data	Delete dataset data			
		▲ Import table data	🛓 Export table data 🛛 🗎	Delete table data 🗢 Show/Hide	columns T Validation filter		
			1	Actions		10.00	Validations
						N 4 1	
		+ Add record					

Figure 31 Import previous data

te table data	Show/Hide columns 👔 Validation filter	
ons	Validations	
	Import previous data	×
	Do you want to import previous data?	
	C	✓ Import × Cancel

Figure 32 Replace data

- [A] The **'Import dataset data'** will show a dropdown with different tools to import data depending on the dataflow schema configuration. The one below 'Import previous data' is the option to click to load data from previous reporting.
- [B] If we mark the 'Replace data' option, all data will be replaced with the imported data of the process.
  - If not, the data will be added as appended following existing data.
- [C] Confirm the action with the 'Import' button.
- After import the validation will be automatically run.
- Notifications in the top right will inform you the import has started and when the validation has finished
- Once the validation is finished the 'Refresh' button will be highlighted and after clicking you will see the results of the validation.

In some projects there will be prefilling of the data for previous reporting periods. There is no need for the member states to migrate or change formats of previous reporting because this will be done automatically.



## 3.3.6 How to filter table data

To filter table data, insert in an input text in the table bar 'Filter value' [A] the text you want to search in all fields.

The geometer fields will be omitted, and the filter is case sensitive.

± Import table data ± Export table data 🝵 🛙	elete table data 🛛 🖉 Show/Hide columns 🛛 🛪 Validation filter	1 X		A	Filter by value
Actions	Validations	test1 🖸 🖨	test2 😗 🖨	_	test3 🔁 🏚
		1	ð	a	
		H ◀ 1 → H 10 ¥			Filtered: 1   Total: 3 records
+ Add record					Ø Paste records

Figure 33 Filter table data

# 3.3.7 How to load data for a Point field

Import table data     A     Export table d	ata 🚦 Delete table data 🗢 Show/Hide	e columns 🛛 🍸 Validation filter		
Actions	Validations	number 🖲 🗢	point 🖲 🗢	text <sup>1</sup> 🖨
			-4,-5 EPSG: WGS84 - 4326	showing point features
		11	50.394632767437734, 7.734375000000001 - EPSG:4326	showing point features 2
	н	▲ 1   H 10		Total: 2 records
+ Add record				C Paste records

#### Figure 34 Point data

- 1. Data can be introduced by:
  - i. [A] Typing directly in box, importing or with 'Add record'.
  - ii. [B] Selecting point in the map.

oortnet 3.0 🔪 希 Dataflows 🔪 🔲 Dataflow	w > 🕱 Dataset designer		
	Geospatial data	×	
▲ Export dataset data	Current point: {Latitude: -4, Longitude: -5} New point: {Latitude: 55.21984767183885, Longitude: 12.992500450288192} Note: Double click on the map to select a new point		Das
t × t2 × + Table description	+     WGS84-432       -     Topographic   FINLAND		
desc	Streets         NO RWAY         Late still           National Geographic         Oilo         Stockholm         Plasma Petersburg           Oreans         TSTONIA         Plasma         Plasma		
🏩 Import table data 🔹 Export table c	Gray Netth See DENMAR See LATVIA Moscow DENMAR Gray UNITED KINGDO OM DUBIN UNITED Dublin Dubl	Volga	
Actions	IFELAND Amsterdam Berlin POLAND BILLARUS London Brussels GERMANN Warsaw Calone Calone Calculation Colone Calculation Calculation Colone Calculation Colone Calculation Colone Calculation Colone Calculation Calculation Colone Calculation Colone Calculation Calculation Calculation Calculation Colone Calculation Calc	22	
	FRANCE Milano Budapest AUSTRIA O HUNCARY Milano Duchared	S	
+ Add record	Barcelona 00 mm Leaflet   Powered by Earl   Earl, HERE, Garmin, FAO, NOAA,	USGS	
	Save X Ca	ncel	

#### Figure 35 Point in the map

iii. [C] – Pasting records.

2. [D] – Different spatial reference and basemap layer can be chosen.



For any other spatial data there won't be any visualization tool to be able to preview that spatial transformations have worked correctly.

## 3.3.8 How to load data for other Spatial fields

Fields type *Line, Polygon, Multiple points, Multiple lines and Multiple polygons* should be added through "Import table data" functionality.

The format to report the spatial data is GeoJSON and it can be included in CSV, SQLite or geopackage files. Remember that the reporter will only be able to use the type of files that the requester or data custodian specifies for the dataflow.

#### 3.3.9 How to see the list of QC checks

- 1. In the top menu click on 'QC rules' to see which rules have been defined for the dataset.
  - i. It is possible to download the list of QCs in a CSV file by clicking on the 'Download QCs' button.

#### **3.3.10** How to validate the data manually

- 1. Click on 'Validate'.
- 2. A notification in the top right will indicate the validation has started and when it has been completed.
- 3. **'Refresh'** the table once the validations are complete.
- 4. Errors are displayed at four types the field; record; table; and dataset.
- 5. Field level errors have icons next to value in the field. Hover over it to see the error message.
- 6. The column '*Validations*' shows for each record which level of errors at field and record level.
- 7. Click on **'Show validations'** button (dataset menu) to view the list of all errors in the dataset. These errors are displayed in a summary table, grouped by a particular error type. This table has four columns:
  - Entity One of FIELD/RECORD/TABLE/DATASET.
  - Table the table with the error.
  - Field the type of field affected with the error.
  - Code the error code.
  - Validation level:
    - **BLOCKER**: Blocker messages indicate that the detected error will prevent data submission (data release is not possible).
    - ERROR: Error messages indicate issues that clearly need corrective action by the data reporter.
    - WARNING: Warning messages indicate issues that may be an error. Data reporters are expected to double-check relevant records.
    - INFO: Informative message. Neutral or statistical feedback about the delivery, e.g. number of species reported.
  - Error message What the issue is.



- Number of records Number of records grouped.
- 8. Page through it and sort it to understand errors in data. It is also possible to filter records in the validation table to make it easier to work with.
- 9. You can filter on the error messages either by the error level or the entity type.
- 10. Click on an error in the list to go to the record in the table and it will be highlighted. When clicking on a grouping, it filters the main table with all those records that triggered the error.
- 11. Click on button **'Download validations'** if you want to download the validation information grouped by a particular error type.
- 12. Click on **'Dashboards'** to get a visual overview of the number of errors in the data.
- 13. Correct the errors and revalidate the data.
- 14. Only BLOCKERS will stop the data from being released to the data collection.

To make clearer how to deal with the correction of the errors in the data these would be the steps:

- Import data as explained in sections 3.3.3 and 3.3.4 and click on 'Refresh' button.
- Click on 'Validate' button and after the process finishes click on 'Refresh' button.
- 3. Check if there are errors and/or blockers.
- 4. Click on **'Export dataset data'** and download the excel file with validations.
- 5. Open the excel file, check where there are errors and correct them. You can see an explanation in the validation column after the column with error.

W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.4177         Annote scapping           W0, C0, specific-character land in water to 0.41777         Annote scapping	silityida facilityida	e facilitate facilitate facilitate facilitate	latitude latitude	a vi langitude long	itude remarks remarks	<ul> <li>Becord validation</li> </ul>	5							
NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status     0.4107     -3.707     Remarks cample       NUC_N     speciet constant informations and the status       NUC_N     speciet constant information and the status     speciet constant information and the status     speciet constant information and the status       NUC_N     speciet constant information and the status     specint information and the status	1 V602 OK	separateReclamatics Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
NUD_CA         special contract fairing traines test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           CA         special contract fairing traines test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traine test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traine test         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines         64.0170         -3.070         Remarks sample           REC_CA         special contract fairing traines         special contract fairing traines         special contract fairing traines         special contracontract fairing traines	R600 OK	separateReclamation Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
B00_04         separatelecianto fully marte tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark sample           B00_05         separatelecianto fully market tet delatify         -3.2079         Remark	V603 OK	separateReclamatics Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.4277         4.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.4277         A.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.4277         A.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.4277         A.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.4277         A.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         0.42777         A.7077         Remain sample           R0, OK         imparticulationality land total difference         A.7077         Remain sample         A.7077	601 OK	separateReclamatics Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
X80_24         ispantisetementorization haves test         al.8127         -3.937         Remain scample           X80_24         ispantisetementorization haves test         method         al.8127         Remain scample           X80_24         ispantisetementorization haves test         method         al.8127         Remain scample	1604 OK	separateReclamatics Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
SSSUEXIX       wiewinkstetikier/r       Image: same biology       Image: same biology         SSSUEXIX       SSSUEXIX       SSSUEXIX       SSUEXIX       Image: sa	602 OK	separateReclamatics Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example									
SISSENDER V Annu Sternard Facility Name Mark 46.43275 - 3.2027 Annue Ann						BUCKNE Relityd entfires chene is either YwbawWa slawJater Treatme niffennt Odo' or YwbawWa slawJater Treatme niffennt Odo' or YwbawWa slawJater Treatme niffennt Odo' or YwbawWa slawJater Treatme Parityd entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Treatme entfires chama slawJater Slaw								
0270014010P urbanWasteWasterTr RF600	0290002010E	urbanWasteWaterTr separateReclamatic Facility Name text	40.416775	-3.70379	Remarks example Remarks example	exist in the referenc e table								
	02700140109	urbanWasteWaterTr			RF600									

#### Figure 36 Excel file with validation

- 6. The user can change the rows with errors and upload again the file.
- 7. Remember to select the 'Replace data' checkbox. As you can see, although there are extra columns that are not in the template, but only the columns that appear in the template will be uploaded and updated.



# 3.3.11 How to delete a row

1 × +				A Design View da
Table description				Bood only table
desc			Add unique constraint	
			출 Add row constraint	Fixed number of records
🛃 Import table data 🕹 Export table	e data 🛛 🔒 Delete table data 🛛 🗢 Show/Hide	e columns 🍸 Validation filter		
Actions	Validations	number 🕄 🜩	point 🖲 🜩	text 🕄 🜩
		1		bla
		11	50.394632767437734, 7.734375000000001 - EPSG:4326	blabla
	н	▲ 1 ► N 10 ♥		Total: 2 records

#### Figure 37 Action buttons to edit and delete

- 1. [A] Click on View data.
- 2. Click on the red trash-can icon in the first column.
- 3. You will be prompted to confirm the deletion click 'yes' to confirm.
- 4. Note: All associated QC checks both automatic and manually added are also deleted.

## 3.3.12 How to save a copy of the dataset

- 1. On the table menu bar, click on 'Manage copies'.
- 2. In the dialogue, give your copy a description in the text field at the top and press the '+' button.
- 3. Click 'Yes' to confirm in the popup.
- 4. The copy will now be listed on the right.
- 5. Note: the user cannot release a copy they have made themselves. But the user can make copies for themselves as convenient restore points.
- 6. Close the right panel and continue working.

#### **3.3.13** How to restore a copy of the dataset

- 1. On the table menu bar, click on 'Manage copies'.
- 2. In the list, press the 'Restore copy' button next to the copy you wish to revert to (WARNING: the current data will be overwritten consider taking a copy of the current dataset before reverting to an older one).
- 3. Confirm in the dialogue you wish to continue.
- 4. Wait for the green notification to appear in the top right, confirming the copy has been successfully restored.
- 5. Close the right panel.
- 6. Click on the **'Refresh'** button.

European Environment Agency



# 3.3.14 How to fill a Webform

Documentation regarding Webforms can be found in a separate HowTo document.